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Mr. ROBERT C. BYRD. I announce

that the Senator from Nevada (Mr. CAN
NON), the Senator from California (Mr.
CRANSTON) , the Senator from Mississippi
(Mr. EASTLAND), the Senator from Geor
gia (Mr. GAMBRELL), the Senator from
Alaska (Mr.. GRAVEL), the Senator from
Oklahoma (Mr. HARRIS), the Senator
from Indiana (Mr. HARTKE) , the Senator
from Minnesota (Mr. HUMPHREY), the
Senator from Hawaii (Mr. INOUYE), the
Senator from Arkansas (Mr. MCCLEL
LAN), the Senator from South Dakota
(Mr. MCGOVERN), the Senator from
New Hampshire (Mr. McINTYRE), the
Senator from New Mexico (Mr. MON
TOYA) , the Senator from Maine (Mr.
MUSKIE) , and the Senator from Alabama
(Mr. SPARKMAN) are necessarily absent.

I further announce that the Senator
from Rhode Island (Mr. PELL) is absent
on official business.

I further announce that, if present and
voting, the Senator from Georgia (Mr.
GAMBRELL), the Senator from Minne
sota (Mr. HUMPHREY), the Senator from
South Dakota (Mr. MCGOVERN) , the Sen
ator from New Hampshire (Mr. McIN
TYRE) , and the Senator from Rhode Is
land (Mr. PELL) would each vote "yea."

Mr. GRIFFIN. I announce that the
Senator from Tennessee (Mr. BAKER),
the Senator from Maryland (Mr. BEALL) ,
the Senator from Massachusetts (Mr.
BROOKE), the Senator from New York
(Mr. BUCKLEY), the Senator from New
Jersey (Mr. CASE), the Senator from Ore
gon (Mr. PACKWOOD), and the Senator
from Connecticut (Mr. WEICKER) are ab
sent on official business.

The Senator from Hawaii (Mr. FONG)
is necessarily absent.

The Senator from Arizona (Mr. GOLD
WATER) and the Senator from South
Dakota (Mr. MUNDT) are absent because
of illness.

The Senator from Tennessee (Mr.
BROCK) and the Senator from Nebraska
(Mr. HRUSKA) are detained on official
business.

If present and voting, the Senator
from Massachusetts (Mr. BROOKE), the
Senator from Hawaii (Mr. FONG) , the
Senator from Nebraska (Mr. HRUSKA),
and the Senator from Oregon (Mr. PACK
WOOD) would each vote "yea."

The result was announced-yeas 72,
nays 0, as follows:

[Leg. No. 195]
YEA8---72

So the bill (S. 3442) was passed.
Mr. KENNEDY. Mr. President, I move

to reconsider the vote by which the bill
was passed.

Mr. ROBERT C. BYRD and Mr. JAV
ITS moved to lay the motion on the table.

The motion to lay on the table was
agreed to.

SUDDEN INFANT DEATH SYNDROME
The ACTING PRESIDENT pro tem

pore. Under the previous unanimous con
sent agreement, the Chair now lays be
fore the Senate, Senate Joint Resolution
206, which the clerk will read.

The assistant legislative clerk read as
follows:

A joint resolution (S.J. Res. 206) relating
to sudden Infant death syndrome.

The Senate proceeded to consider the
joint resolution, which had been reported
from the Committee on Labor and Public
Welfare with an amendment on page 2,
line 12, after the word "the", strike out
"top" and insert "highest."

The ACTING PRESIDENT pro tem
pore. Debate on this measure is limited.

The Senator from Minnesota is recog
nized. How much time does the Senator
yield himself?

Mr. MONDALE. Mr. President, I yield
myself such time as I may need. I do not
believe we are going to need the full 20
minutes. I know of no opposition.

May I first commend the distinguished
chairman of the Health Subcommittee
(Mr. KENNEDY) and the ranking Repub
lican member of that subcommittee (Mr.
SCHWEIKER) for their courteous, thor
ough, and expeditious consideration of
this most necessary proposal.

I am pleased to propose for considera
tion by the Senate today a resolution
which I hope \Vill eventually end the suf
fering of thousands of families who lose
babies in this country each year to sudden
infant death syndrome or crib death.

My Subcommittee on Children and
Youth held a hearing on the subject of
SIDS on January 25. On that occasion I
heard testimony from officials of HEW,
from medical experts, and from,parents
whose children had died of SIDS. I was
appalled to learn that, although SIDS
kills at least 10,000 infants each year in
this country, the Government does not
even list it as a cause of death in infant
mortality statistics.

Furthermore, HEW has in the past
shown only the most minimal commit
ment to finding a cause and cure of the
disease. In 1971, only one research grant
in the amount of $46,258 was directed
specifically toward the discovery of an
exploration and solution of this hideous
disease.

SIDS 'is a disease that takes a terrible
toll on the families it strikes. The in-

to address this problem with increased
Federal support for programs of detec
tion, treatment, and education.

Mr. President, I understand that the
House of Representatives is acting ex
peditiously on this matter, and I am
hopeful that undue delay can be avoided
in bringing this legislation to enactment.

Mr. ROBERT C. BYRD. Mr. President,
I ask unanimous consent to have a state
ment by the distinguished Senator from
Georgia (Mr. GAMBRELL) printed in the
RECORD.

The ACTING PRESIDENT pro tem
pore. Without objection, it is so ordered.

STATEMENT BY SENATOR GAMBRELL

I am pleased that the Senate Is proceeding
to the consideration of S. 3442 this morning.
This blll, which was adopted from a blll I
cosponsored, S. 3187, deals with a problem
which has been grOWing In the United states
and has increased at an almost uncontrol
lable rate over the last several years. Venereal
disease In our country has reached epidemic
proportions and has moved Into second place
as' the most common communicable disease
behind only the common cold. It shows no
signs of lessening on its own prior to the In
troduction of effective control and treatment
programs, programs which do not exist to
day.

The problem of'venereal disease can no
longer be swept .under the rug as It once
was. This is a prob~em which must be dis
cussed and dealt 'with on a serious level.
According to recent estimates, during 1972,
there will be 2.5 mllllon new cases of gonor
rhea and over 100,000 new cases of syphll1s.
Over one-half mllllon people are now Hvlng
In this country with untreated syph111s. These
victims either do not know they have the dis
ease or they are afraid to seek treatment for
fear of being socially ostracized.

The spread of venereal disease has reached
all corners of our Nation from Georgia to
Alaska. and from Maine to CaHfornia. The
problem can no longer be Ignored. If left
untreated, venereal disease may result in
blindness, ster11lty, brain damage, aortic in
sufficiency, visceral disorders and even death.
The ramifications of the disease are too serl
ous to allow the severity of this problem to
go unrecognized.
. This blll wlll provide added national recog

nition and special funding for an educational
program which wlll increase the national
awareness of the severity of the problem. This
program will serve to better publicize the
severe problems associated With VD, and it
will. hopefully result in the decrease of the
number of. people. affected by this crippling
disease each year.

. Mr,JAVITS. Mr. President, I am pre
pared to yield back our time and vote on
the measure.

Mr. KENNEDY. Mr. President, I am
pleased to yield our time.

The ACTING PRESIDENT pro tem
pore; The bill is open to further amend
ment. If there be no further amendment
to be propoSed; the question is on agree
ing to the committee amendment in the
nature of a substitute.

The committee amendment was agreed
to.

The bill was ordered to be engrossed
for a third reading and was read the
third time.

The ACTING PRESIDENT pro tem
pore. The bill having been readthethird
time, the question is, Shall it pass? On
this . queStiOn the yeas and' nays .have
been' ordered, and the clerk will call the
roll. _~"'" .

.The legislative clerk called the roll.

Aiken Fannin
Allen FulbrIght
Allott Griffin
Anderson Gurney
Bayh Hansen
Bellmon Hart
Bennett Hatfield
Bentsen Hol1lngs
Bible Hughes
Boggs Jackson
Burdick Javlts
Byrd, Jordan, N.C.

Harry F., Jr. Jordan, Idaho
Byrd, Robert C. Kennedy
Chiles Long
Church Magnuson
Cook Mansfield
Cooper MathIas
Cotton McGee
CurtIs Metcalf
Dole Miller
Dominick Mondale
Eagleton Moss
Ellender Nelson
ErvIn Pastore

Pearson
Percy
Proxmire
Randolph
Rlblcoff
Roth
Saxbe
Schwelker
Scott.
Smith
Spong
Stafford
Stennis
stevens
Stevenson
Symington
Taft
Talmadge
Thurmond
Tower
Tunney
WUllams
Young

Baker
Beall
Brock
Brooke
Buckley
Cannon
Case
Cranston
Eastland
Fong

NAY8---0

NOT VOTING-28
Gambrell McIntyre
Goldwater Montoya
Gravel Mundt
Harris Muskle
Hartke Packwood
Hruska Pell
Humphrey Sparkman
Inouye Weicker
McClellan
McGovern
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DEA1l SntS: I need your help. My 2 month
daughter has died and I love her very much,
It was our first chIld. She was born on Jan
uary 31, 1971-she died April I, 1971.

My baby-I carried her for nine months.

GENTLEMEN: I read an article in "The
Kansas City Star" about your National Con
vention and wrote to J. Bruce Beckwith,
M.D. who was kind enough to send me lltera
ture containing your address.

I lost my son almost 24 years ago In Lima,
Peru, With this syndrome. An autopsy was
not performed. I have since divorced and my
ex-husband has told both my daughters that
I kllled the baby. I fed him at 3 :00 a.m, and
at 6 :00 a.m. he was dying when I went in to
check him. He was still warm and there
was no vomitus In his crib. I have seen two
psychiatrists but I stlll have terrible guilt
feelings.

I am wondering whether there is a Chapter
of the NFSID that I can join In my area.
How can I help? There is an occasional local
newspaper coverage of an infant death but
there is usually no mention of this syndrome.

I would do anything I could to help relieve
some tortured parent from going through
what I have for 24 years and probably for the
rest of my life.

I deeply appreciate the work you are doing
and only wish that there had been people
like you to help me when my baby died.

--- Mis;ourl.

fant victims of the disease usually die
suddenly and inexplicably, often in their
cribs in the middle of the night. They
often do not appear to be ill, and when
an autopsy is performed, no specific
cause of death is found.

Parents, other relatives and friends
have no choice but to accept the death
of an innocent child without explana
tion. Parents often cannot avoid the
thought that they somehow neglected or
abused the child. Police and other pUb
lic authorities who come in contact with
it are often not familiar witt. SillS and
imply that the parents are guilty of
criminal neglect toward the child.

Following the hearing of the Children
and Youth Subcommittee, I introduced
Senate Joint Resolution 206 in the hope
of encouraging HEW to intensify its
SillS research efforts and provide serv
ices to stricken families. The resolution
was subsequently approved by the Health
Subcommittee and the Labor and Pub
lic Welfare Committee. I am particular
ly grateful to Senator KENNEDY for his
role in gaining committee approval of the
measure.

I ask unanimous consent to have print
ed in the RECORD at this point the re
port of the Labor and Public Welfare
Committee on Senate Joint Resolution
206 and some letters written by parents
who have lost children to SIDS.

These letters offer a moving and pOign
ant description of the experiences of
families whose children have died. They
are the most convincing evidence I have
seen of the need for the passage of this
resolution. I hope that all of my col
leagues will join me in voting for Senate
Joint Resolution 206 today.

There being no objection, the repOrt
and letters were ordered to be printed
in the RECORD, as follows:

PARENTS' LETTERS
REPORT OF HANDLING OF MICHAEL DAVANZO,

AGE 23 MONTH8--DIED, THURSDAY, SEPTEM
BER 17, 1970, AT HOME, 12 NOON
I found the baby limp after a morning nap.

I phoned 911. An ambUlance and a police car
came. During the trip to Jamaica Hospital,
the doctor in the ambulance applled oxygen.
He asked "When was the last time you saw
this baby allve?" At the hospital emergency
treatment began immediately. At the same
time pollce and nurses began questioning me.
Their questions were: "What dldyou give
him?" "What did you do to him?" "Did he
fall?" My mind went blank.

Then I was taken Into a private room to be
interviewed by a doctor With a nurse. He took
the case history and explained that an au
topsy would be necessary. It was the law. It
would be done in Queens General. On Thurs
day night when the undertaker called Queens
General, he was told the baby was there.
However. later it was revealed that baby ar
rived at Queens General on Friday (9/18) at
3:19 PM. There was no medical examiner in
Queens, so the body was removed to Bellevue
on Saturday (9/19) at 12:17 p.m. The reason
for this delay was said to be that there was
no van driver. On Saturday morning we
called a television "Action Reporter," ChrIs
topher Jones. We were advised to call a wom
an doctor at Bellevue (by undertaker). This
doctor asked if the baby had been sick. The
baby had been well, and seen by his doctor
5 days previously. She took the doctor's
name. We were advised to pick the baby up
at 4:00 p.m. Within a short time, the death
certificate arrived. Cause of death was stated
as "under further investigation."

My husband and I went through a period
of extreme anguish. We wondered if We'd
missed an illness. We ate his baby food. We
drank his apple juice. We rellved our lives
(previous to his death) trying to retrace
steps and wondering.

In January, I contacted the previously
mentioned "Action" reporter. I told him I
had never heard anything further about my
son's death. In February, a letter arrived
stating the cause of death was pneumonia.
For a fUll autopsy report we were advised to
send $11. This we did. I called my family
doctor lond accused him of overlooking the ill
ness. The doctor assured me and said it was
crib death.

The cause of death on the autopsy report
was "pending further investigation." The re
port also said "circumstances suspicious or
unusual," which made me nervous.

In July, 1971 a letter came from Dr. Hel
perno It stated he was sorry for the loss of
my child and gave me statistics on how many
babies do die suddenly. He asked me to please
answer a questionnaire.

I have found it a great help talking to
other parents about their experiences. I am
now active and hope to prevent other parents
from going through the anguish and treat
ment of almost a full year until they learned
their baby has died of Sudden Infant Death
Syndrome.

MRs. RONALD DAVANZO.

MIscELLANEOUS LETTERS TO NATIONAL FOUNDA
TION FOR SUDDEN INFANT DEATH, INC.

DEAR Sms: I lost my baby last week and
they called it a crib death. My heart aches so
I just can't explain it. I keep asking if there
was something I could of done. Please send
me some information.

Some times I feel I am losing my mind. I
even fear going home to the place she died.
Her crib is stlll there along with her Clothing
what shouid I do? I have only one other
child, a four year old. ShOUld I go home
and try all over or should I look for another
house? I am With my parents now. My hus
band is a truck driver and he's not home all
the time. This means I am alone a great
deal.

If you can please help me.
Waiting to hear from you.

------,
Pennsylvania.

She weighed 8 pounds 2% ounces she never
lost any weight she gained. When she died
she weighed 14 pounds and was very happy.
She ate gOOd, slept gOOd.

Our family got the fiu. I was wondering
if my baby could of gotten the fiu without
anyone knOWing about it. The only thing
that happened was that I did not realize
till she died that for three days before she
died she Slept 2 days and I had to wake her
up to feed her. Then the next day she Was
alright. That night I gave her supper then I
put her to bed. She seemed restless but
everybody told me that lots of babies do cry
all night and are all right. She had just been
for a check up and she was alright. Well, I
picked her up and rocked her to sleep. She
was breathing okay. She didn't act like she
had a cold or anything. The next morning she
Was dead.

Now I am a nervous wreck. I don't care if I
live or not. The lnan that checks dead people
said there was no sense in doing anything to
her because they won't find anything. I am
heartbroken.

What I want to know is do you have any
idea What could have been wrong With her?
They told me it might be "crib death"-what
is that-I don't believe that my baby or any
baby coUld die from nothing.

We want to have more children but I am
scared to become pregnant because I am
afraid it wlll happen again. I just can't take
it anymore. I am on nerve pills. I keep hearing
her crying. I don't feel like seeing my friends
because When I do I don't know What to say
to them. I need your help I am going to end
up in a mental hospital if I don't get some
help from someone soon. I am so lonely.

------
New York.

DEAR Sms: I have just finished reading a
story In a magazine about "crib death" I
can't begin to tell you how much I app;e
ciated it. On April 16, 1969 we lost our seven
week old baby. Coroner's Report Crib Death. I
had heard llttle about these deathS, still we
searched magazines, newspapers for anything
we could find on the SUbject, anything to en
llghten us to the facts about these deaths.
I kept asking myself, did I dQ anything
wrong. Did I over feed him, shOUld I have
laid him on his back instead of his stomach,
Will this happen again. All kinds of endless,
torturing questions. Thank God, I had a
doctor who explained to me that it was noth
ing I had done wrong and a husband Who
assured me that I gave my baby the best care
In the world. You know when this thing
happens to you it makes you more aware of
other infants dying. I pick up a newspaper
and see where a baby has died and my heart
goes out to these parents, I think if only I
COUld talk to them, help them and their fam
ily to learn the facts of these deaths. To tell
them it wasn't their faUlt in any way-that
there was nothing they could of done,

YOU'd be surprised how ignorant the gen
eral pUbllc is about this, people would ask
us what did your baby die from and When
we would say SID they'd look at us like we
were crazy. For instance, Jedd Roe's case
When the detective asked him that s111y ques
tion. The Coroner showed us a clipping that
he carried in his wallet about these deaths,
he told us that he had seen marriages break
up because one mate would blame the other,
why? because most people don't know or have
never read about crib death.

Please teli us how we can help others to
understand. If there is a volunteer group near
my home. town put us in touch with them
or tell me how to start one. We would sin
cerely like to help youi.cause..I thank you
for this wonderfUl artlcle-I hope m1lliona of
other people read It. Send us more infor
mation if you can.

------,
Kentucky.
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DEAII'MRS. CHOATE: We thank you for your

very nice letter plus allot the articles you
enclosed on SIDS. They sure helped to answer
questions which needed answering. And you
gave us more information than we could have
ever hoped for. Thank you from the bottom of
our hearts.

There is one thing that left a doubt In
my mind. In all the articles they mention a
peak age for SIDS. Two to four months,
rarely over 6 months. Our daughter WRS lSY,
months old. She had been to the doctor 6
days before she died. He checked her and
found her healthy. He gave her a vaccination
shot. Six days later she ran a slight fever
(100) then after that she was dead. No other
signs of sickness, no cough, no runny nose,
no sore throat. We had an autopsy performed.
The doctor told. us "bronchial pneumonia"
was all they could come up with. He said It
was a common thing to list this as "crib
death." He had no explanation as to why, or
how. All he said was "the vaccination had
nothing to do With It, It was a "crib death."
Why would they say "bronchial pneumonia"
If It was "crib death"? We asked him for in
formation or who we could write or talk to
for answers. He had nothing to tell us.

It wasn't until a few mOnths ago, two
years after our daughter's death, that we
found out about your organization. It Is a
long time to go around wondering and feel
Ing gUilty. We hadn't known that so many
babies die from SIDS. For the longest time
after our son was born, we were so fright
ened It would happen again. We feel relieved
now. But I guess It wlll be some time befora
I am really secure.

Again, we thank you for your letter and
for sharing your baby's death With us. It
made us feel less alone. We deeply appreciate
your literature and all of the work you are
doing.

------,
Massachusetts.

DEAR SIRS: I am 18 years old, my husband
is 21. We were married October 12, 1968. June
19, 1969, we had a baby girl. She would have
been 3 months old September 19, 1969-the
day she died.

We had left her with my mother-In-law
for 3 days. We went to pick her up the
evening of September 18, 1969. My mother
In-law Informed me she thought "---"
was catching a cold. She said she had a
runny nose.

She was Ina playful mood when we ar
rived home. My husband wanted me to let
her stay up later and play. However-I had
her on a schedule. She was to go to bed at
9:00 p.m.--she usually woke up at about
7:00 a.m. Then after she had her bath and
ate she usually went back to sleep for an
hour or two.

I put Vicks on her back, chest and throat-
then I put a heating pad under her sheet
and turned It on to medium.

I worked trom the time she was 2 weeks
old untU she was about 2Y, months. (My
husband was in jall at this time, that's why
we le'tt her at my mother-In-laws--because
he just got out and we wanted to be alone
so we could go places and have fun.)

SO, she was used to being with her grand
mother and uncles. Naturally she was spolled
and didn't like to go to bed. 80 she cried
untll about 10 or 10:30. At 11:00 just before
we went to bed my husband went in to check
on her. She was asleep on her stomach (she
wouldn't sleep on her back). He asked me
to come in the bedroom and showed me that
she was covered with perspiration, her clothes
were soaked. I presumed the heating pad was
on too high although It didn't teel too warm
when I touched It. I turned it on low. We had
just moved to the apartment and didn't
have the heat turned on yet so I didn't want
to. turn the heating pad all the way off.

At about 2:30 or 3:00 I woke up. "---"
was scream1ng~not just crying but scream-

ing. I thought that she just had a bad dream.
I went to her room and tried to give a bottle
but she wouldn't take It. She just kept on
screaming. I went back to bed and she shut
up in about 15 or 20 minutes-but all this
time she was screaming.

At 6:00 we got up because I was going to
take my husband to look for a job. I went in
to get her to give her a bath. I picked her up
and she was stlff-I dropped her back down.
Her little fists were purple and they were
gripping the sheet. There was white foam
in her mouth.

The .coroner said she had been dead prob
ably S or 4 hours. I guess she stopped crying
when she died. They said It was "crib death"
but never did tell me anything more than
that. I think she suffocated from the heat
of the heating pad. My husband and mother
In-law both told me that it wasn't because
of the heating pad and told me to call the
autopsy man a few days later when I was off
the tranqu1l1zers. He again told me it was
"crib death." But no one ever told me what
that meant.

We now have a 7 month old baby. When he
was 5 months old he was put In the hospital
for 3 days for what doctors thought was
bronchitis. They found he was only sick from
allergy to a drug another doctor has pre
scribed for his cold while my baby'S doctor
was away.

The first day he went to the hospital my
husband and I got Into an argument. He said
I never took care o'f the baby and that it was
my fault he was In the hospital.

We were living with my mother-in-law
then too (neither her nor my father-In-law
could drive so I had to take each ot them
back and forth to work every day plus I had
to do all the housework). So, about all I
could do with the baby was give him a bath
and my husband took care of him the rest
of the time.

Also when he said It was my faUlt that
the baby was in the hospital he said "at
least I never kllled our little girl". He had
never said that to me before and didn't
mean to say it then, it just slipped out. But
that proved to me that he does think I
killed her. Since then, I wonder all the time
it It was my fault and If I really did kill her
With the heating pad. Maybe my mother-in
law and the autopsy guy know I killed her
with the heating pad and are hiding it from
me. I don't know Why, but I feel that they
are lying to me. I am afraid to ask my hus
band.

(This letter goes on tor three more pages
pleading tor answers to questions related to
sleep, eating habits, etc., but Is mainly re
petitive.)

Well, there are probably more questions I
could ask, but I maInly want to know It you
think I killed my baby or did she really die
trom "crib de.ath"? And What is "crib death".
Please help me as soon as possible. I don't
want to kill my new baby.

------,
Oregon.

LETTERS TO SUBcoMMrrTEE ON CHILDREN
ANn YOUTH

ARLINGTON HEIGHTS,
January 28,1972:

Senator WALTER F. MONDALE,
Chairman, Senate Subcommittee On Children

and Youth, U.S. Senate, Washington, D.C.
DEAR SENATOR MONDALE: It was indeed a

great pleasure meeting and talking to you
after the Hearing on Sudden Infant Death
Tuesday In Washington. It's quite a good
feeling knowing that at last something is
really going to be done to investigate and
research Crib Deaths in our Country.

Enclosed Is the testimony you asked us to
submit, which Is to be Included in the record:

Our son, David, a four month old healthy
adopted child, was ted early in the morning
of June 28, 1968. (About 5:45 a.m.) After his

bottle, I put him back In the cradle, and
crept qUietly back to bed mysel!.

Around 7:00 A.M. my husband awoke and
we talked for a few minutes. We commented
on how good little Dave was that morning,
to go back to sleep. When my husband got
out ot bed, he Immediately sensed something
wrong. He. went over to the cradle and found
David laying face down with the light blanket
wrapped around his head. He picked up the
baby and tried to give him mouth to mouth
resuscitation. I picked up the phone and
asked the operator to send the fire dept. in
halator squad, because my baby wasn't
breathing.

Moments later a hook and ladder fire truck
was at our door, followed by the police. (We
found out later, that our town didn't have
a fire ambulance at that time.) At any rate
the police squad car drove our baby to the
hospital Where he was pronounced dead on
arrival.

At Northwest Community Hospital in Arl
Ington Heights, we were handled extremely
well. (So much better than the majority ot
young parents we have since contacted tor
the N.F.S.I.D.) This tact above all others,
forces us to keep working With new families.
When all SID parents are given talr and
equal treatment, we wlll teel a sense of great
rellet.

Anyway, at the hospital, we told them we
thought the baby had suffocated In his
blanket. They didn't know, but explained
that an autopsy would be performed.

Later that morning our pediatrician came
out to the house and told us about crib
deaths, and how he telt almost certain that
the autopsy would prove that our son was a
victim ot Sudden Infant Death.

An hour later, the funeral home called to
say the Cook County Coroner's office (Chi
cago, I111nois) called and released the body,
as this was, In their opinion, an obvious case
ot pneumonia. We just couldn't understand
how they could tell in a telephone call to the
hospital, Without ever having seen the baby.
I became very confused once again. Maybe
someone was trying to say pneumonia, just
to make me feel better. It just made the guilt
feelings stronger.

Pneumonia just couldn't be .... At 6:00
AM our son was In perfect health. There was
no way he could be dead from pneumonia
one hour later I

I Immediately felt once again that I had
accidently smothered the baby by putting a
blanket over him. But it was cool that morn
Ing, I reasoned .•. why shouldn't I have
covered him? But, maybe If I hadn't, he'd be
alive. Thoughts like these raced madly
through my mind. We called the pediatrician
again, and told him what had happened. I
honestly wanted to believe him about Crib
Death, but couldn't ..... there was this
blanket .... I just felt totally responsible.

Dr. Manas recommended a private autopsy
be done at Evanston Hospital, which he
thought would help. (Once again we were
more fortunate than most, to have such good
counseling from our doctor, and also, the
abl11ty of being able to afford a private
autopsy.) It was performed tha.t morning,
and later that week, the pathologist found
the cause ot Death to be Sudden Infant
Death Syndrome. A small rellet to us on one
hand, but a new worry just begininng on the
other.

When friends and relatives began calling
us that afternoon to offer sympathy and
money for flowers, we directed that all the
money be sent to any local medical organiza
tion that was researching Sudden Infant
Death. The trouble was, no one seemed to
know of one. We called Northwestern Uni
versity Medical School first. No, they had
nothing. Then we tried Unlv. ot Illinois Re
search, and after talking to a hal! dozen
people, realized that they didn't have, or
know of anyone researching sm. More phone
calls followed, and again the same answer,
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"sorry, no". The sickening shock hit us, that
nowhere in the entire Metropolitan Chicago
Area, was anything being done about SID,
nor could anyone direct us where to go.

By a coincidence, Redbook Magazine ran
an Article on Crib Death, that appeared on
the newsstands that June day in 1968, de
scribing a case very simllar to ours. I des
perately wrote to the organization named,
The National Foundation of Sudden Infant
Death, N.Y., and through them, found many
of the answers we were seeking.

We now know that our son's death was a
classic example of S.I.D., but the biggest
question still remains unanswered. It is
the same one you asked throughout the
Hearings, Sen. lIIondale. "Why is research o.n
SID still back in the middle ages, why in thIS
day and age of medical research and tech
nology, has nothing been done to find the
answer to these Crib Deaths?"

The longer we searched three years ago
.... the less we found. Today, it's basi

cally no different ... and we are stlll ask
ing why. How does one trUly answer the new
parents questions of what has been done
since our son died? How do you answer, not
much because not enough people
care .

It is our opinion, that by not wanting to
scare the general public of young parents,
SID articles and information, up until very
recently has been very scant. We may be
saving young parents from worrying about
SID, but we are not saving their babies. Let
this disease be known . . . . and let it be
conquered.

With this in mind we came to Washington
to support In any way, your interest In this
problem.

Most sincerely yours,
Mrs. NOBLE C. CHRISTENSEN.

PERTH AMBOY, N.J.
DEAR SENATOR MONDALE: On December 16th

1971 I awoke at about 8:25 a.m. because of a
phone call from my husband who had left
for work a half hour earlier. We spoke for a
few minutes ll.lld with the phone In my
hand, I got up and walked across the hall to
our 4y" month old son's room. His name was
George Smith III. He was usually a late
sleeper, and since he had gone to bed past
his normal bedtime, I thought nothing of
him being asleep at 8:30 a.m.

As I opened the door to his room, I put
down the phone and went to his crib. After
just touching his blankets I knew some
thing was very wrong-they were damp-. I
could see his forehead and hands anC1 pUlled
the blanket down-he was discolored and
stiff-he was dead.

I called for first aid. I tried chest massage,
back pat, and mouth to mouth. Then I
called my husband and told him the baby
died in his sleep of suffocation. The first aid
came and took the baby and myself to the
hospital.

There they took my baby and tried to
revive him, but some nurse took me aside
asking for Information, then another nurse
came out and said that she thought that the
baby was breathing. At this I turned to her
and said, "Why lie to me?". Another nurse
led me to a room where I could sit down.
A doctor came in followed by a policeman,
a nurse and another man. The doctor told
me my son died of crib death. He explained
that it wasn't my fault and that this hap
pens to about 20 babies every year in our
county alone.

I found out who the other man was: he
was a detective from the homicide squad and
he wanted to question me. I almost begged
him to please wait, but he Insisted on asking
me questions. "Was your baby sick? If so;
why didn't you take him to see a doctor?
When was the last time the baby saw a doc
tor? When was the last time I checked on
him?"-and he kept repeating these ques-

tions. I answered all of his questions, still
pleading with him to please wait because
my husband wasn't there and he really didn't
know for sure if the baby was dead. When
my husband did arrive, they started ques
tioning him in the same manner.

Someone brought my mother from work to
the hospital. We told her what happened and
the detective was still there listening to all
this. Finally, our minister came and took us
all to his home where we made arrange
ments for our son's funeral.

The most difficult part of everything was
explaining to our famllles and answering
their questions with little information that
we had. Thank God my aunt had read an
article the week before about crib death, and
told us more about what caused it.

The only other thing I can say is that the
hurt and guilt I felt was so intensified just
by the police not waiting to question me, and
that is a feeling I wlll live with always-it
was cruel and Inhuman, to make me go
through something like that when a doctor
had told me in front of the police that my
son's death was no one's faUlt, that no one
could have prevented it.

Mrs. JANICE M. SMITH,
Mr. and Mrs. GEORGE T. SMITH, Jr.

PUBLIC STATEMENT ON SUDDEN INFANT DEATH
BY BARBARA AND DAVE SIMPSON

(Parents of SIDS victim David Carstairs
Simpson. BOrn-November 5, 1968. Died
February 5, 1969. Age-3 months.)
A great amount of unnecessary SUffering

could have been eliminated by three little
words, Sudden Infant Death, written on a
piece of paper called a death certificate.
Instead bronchial pneumonia and interitls
was written. Our doctors told us that upon
their inquiry, they were told that Davey's
was a classic crib death.

How could this unnecessary suffering been
elimJ.nated? It took two years of my life away
from my family and me. I wasn't sure If I
were a fit person to be around anyone. I
didn't know how it was affecting my two
boys. I know that now they are very aware of
how special our new little girl is. They pro
tect her from all possible harm that they are
aware of.. This extra sensitivity probably
never would have developed if SIDS were
written on the death certificate. It never
would have developed because we would have
known for sure that SIDS was the cause and
that an lllness was not overlooked.

My hope for the future is that SIDS be an
entry on all death certificates; and that there
be no double standards of being told one
cause of death and another being written on
the death certificate.

There were so many doubts in my mind
that I couldn't accept it all at once. I read
everythinb that I could get my hands on
about pneumonia and Interltis. I just could
not believe that my baby died of this Without
my seeing some sign of his discomfort. If he
had had diarrhea I could have seen it With
my own eyes. If he had had pneumonia and
a fever, when I held him to nurse him I would
have felt the heat of a fever. Only now can
I rationalize these things. Three years ago
I could not.

I thank God that there was a National
Foundation for SUdden Infant Death to help
me. Without it I could never have gotten
the Information I needed to know. They give
parents so much Of what is needed immedi
ately after a SIDS death. Unfortunately it
took me a few weeks to find them. Thtl dam
age was already done. My thoughts kept go
ing back to what. had been written on the
death certificate. I'll go back a way and
tell you how It happened and the· events
that followed.

Dave, my husband, got up for work at the
regular time; showered and shaved and went
through the Whole morning routine. Then he
realized that the little guy was not rustling

around like he did when someone was moving
around In the room. He picked up our little
son and held him close. Dave knew that there
was no hope of bringing him back. That's why
he did not wake me up right away. When he
did awaken me, I could see that the tears
were wetting his shirt. Our little Davey was
dead. I knew he was dead, but I thought if I
screamed loud enough it would bring him
back. Dave called the police. I looked at
Davey'S face for a long time. I never wanted
to forget it.

When they came they administered arti
ficial respiration and mouth to mouth
resucltatlon. I stlll kept hoping they would
bring him back to life. The police asked Dave
to wrap the baby in his blanket so they
could take him to the hospital. I can remem
ber that so well. As they left I remember
telllng Dave to make sure that he brought
Davey back with him. Of course Dave came
home without him. That's when two years
grieving started. The following events con
tributed to prolonging our grief.

We called my uncle, a mortician. He
asked where the baby's body was. We told
him he was In Elmhurst General Hospital.
In a few minutes he called back and said
there was no record of the baby being
brought there. (Well, Dave and I thought, Oh
good, it was a bad dream.) It was late
evening by the the time they found where
they had misplaced my precious little baby.
This was the start of the loss dignity. Why
the hell should they care where my baby was
lying. For all I knew (having been told
nothing) they could have thrown him in a
garbage can. Our next worst time was still to
come. We were told to come down and
Identify his body the next day. All night r
lay awake wondering what he was going to
look like. Dave and I were so afraid we
couldn't sleep in the same room he had died
in. My mother had taken my two sons home
with her to stay until we had all the arrange
ments made and the baby burled.

We arrived at the morgue the next day
a little early. I was looking to see a little
bundle. I didn't. We waited and watched the
door to the morgue open and close. People
with buckets and syringes went in and out.
All I could think of was how could they
put him in that dirty place. It is an awful
place. It seemed like we waited for hours. All
I wanted to do was see my baby again. Finally
we were called into the coroner's offi.ce. I can
still remember his face. He looked like he had
no blood In his body. His face was very white.
His hair was dark, trimmed in a meticulous
crew cut. I couldn't help but notice that he
wore a bow tie, and thinking he looked like
he was going to a wedding. We were asked
to sit down and answer some questions. Both
agreeing, we sat. I asked him questions first
what did my baby die of? Did you perform
an autospsy? He didn't answer us but said he
would like to ask us some questions. Name,
address, etc. Then he started-Did the baby
have diarrhea? No. Was the baby sick? He
had a cold. Did he have a· fever? No. When
was the last time you had fed the baby? 3: 15.

Next, he told us there would have to be
an autopsy. Dave and I agreed. He went into
a detailed description of how an autopsy Is
performed. He started with the head first.
He said that they would only take what they
needed, and sew it back up and you would
not see it if the baby wore a hat. Next he
said a criss cross incision would be made in
the stomach. By this time we said a few
times that we knew hoW it was done,please
don't explain any more. I couldn't tell you
what he said after that, but he didn't stop
until he was ready. I can remember, I kept
asking if I could please see'the baby now.
He'dismissed us and told us to identify the
body.' ,

We had to stand behind abig glass Window.
I could hear laughing and talking inside. An
attendant wheeled him into view. We both
said it was him. I wanted to touch him so
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bad-his hair was all standing up-straight
Qut like a little halo around his head. I
wondered how they could put him on a really
dirty pillow, even the sheet was dirty. His
head lying straight now and his hands were
at his side. Se was so precious to us. We
went back to his olfice and asked if we could
please be informed of the autopsy results.

We went home and waited and waited. I
called my doctor and asked if he could hurry
things up. He said he was also waiting. Soon
after, my uncle the mortician called to let
Dave and me know the baby would be re
leased later on in the day and that he would
come to our house to pick up the baby's
clothes. He came and went and stlll no word.
At about 3:30 that afternoon, Uncle Tex
called to tell us that pneumonia and interitis
were listed as cause of death.

Five minutes later my doctor called and
said that it was a classic crib death. I asked
what he meant. He said something about the
tubes having ruptured blood vessels. At this
point I called my pediatrician (he had taken
care of my other two chlldren). I asked if
he could get the information straight. He
did. He called back and also said it was crib
death. I was very upset at this point. I kept
thinking. Crib death? What Is it, the crib
that killed my baby? Nonsense. I started
looking up the meaning of crib death. I just
COUldn't find anything on it. I did find a
lot about pneumonia and interitis. But noth
ing on sudden infant death or crib death.
My insides felt like someone was pulling on
them. If it was SID why not put it on the
death certificate. My uncle being the person
to look at the death certificate kept telling
me it was pneumonia. My family kept saying
you must go by what is on the death cer
tificate.

This was a very long day. My family had
left for the day and we were alone. I couldn't
stand it so still. Later that night friends
came over so we wouldn't be alone. I remem
ber we had a nice time and for a while I for
got what happened. Until the house was
empty again. We were just waiting for to
morrow. The next thing I knew the little
white casket was at the cemetery all sealed,
and I could never see him again.

The, nights that followed were terrible. I
couldn't sleep. I was afraid that something
was going to happen to Bobby and Daniel.
Dave's hours were changed to the night shift.
My two friends slept in my apartment With
me so I wouldn't be alone. It didn't help. I
still didn't sleep. When I closed my eyes he
was right in front of me and I had to cry.
Silly but I can remember laughing and stlll
crying. This went on until I contacted tlJ,e
NFSID. Someone had mentioned that they
had read an article in the, newspaper, but
they didn't know exactly when. I went to the
Library. It took time but I finally found the
article title Infant, Killer Stalked. on Long
Island.. With renewed vigor, I contacted the
Foundation. They immediately sent all the
information they had at the time. We spoke
on the phone many times. One mother whose
baby died on the same day a year prevIously
gave me great comfort. For some strange
reason the knOWledge that someone else
shared that' same factor gave me a feeling
that I wasn't alone.

I now learned that other families were told
the same thing by coroners and doctors. Now
that I knew that this was common practice,
I trted to tell this to other people. This is
where I ran into conflicts again. It was said
that if SIDS is put on some death certificates,
why wasn't it: put on mine. I rationalized
this and .. came up with the answer that the
doctors were probably just trying to help me,
so I wouldn't feel that I had overlooked some
warning sign. For two years this is what I be-
lieved; .,
. I have since cOme to reason that what killed
little Davey· was SIDS and not me-only
throUgh the Foundation did I. make this

decision. If I called the Foundation when I
was down, they knew what it was to cry for
days. They have educated me like no other
source was able to. In return, I will do my
best to continue to wipe out ignorance, ex
treme gUilt so as to lessen grief. Foremost,
however, is that SIDS be written on the
death certificate and that no other substitute
be used. Most of all I pray that a cause-cure
be found, so no one ever has to try to wake
up a dead baby that was put to sleep healthy.

Mr. KENNEDY. Mr. President, will the
Senator yield?

Mr. MONDALE. I am happy to yield
to the Senator from Massachusetts, who
helped lead the fight for the adoption of
this measure in the subcommittee.

Mr. KENNEDY. Mr. President, I want
to commend the Senator from Minne
sota for bringing this matter to the at
tention of the Senate. He has, of course,
achieved very substantial recognition,
which is well deserved, for his interest in
the problems of children in this country.
The hearing that his subcommittee held,
I thought, was enormously informative,
though extraordinarily distressing be
cause of the fact that it revealed there
are so many crib deaths in this country.
I think all of us were distressed by the
fact that there was so little information
to be made available to us, that so little
had been gathered by HEW. In the course
of the hearing, W:J could see that there
was a paucity of research and a lack of
training programs for young researchers
to move into this area and investigate the
problem, and thirdly, a lack of informa
tion available both to Congress and to
the parents and consumers across the
country.

The thrust of this resolution is not
only to draw attention to the sense of
Congress, but hopefully to induce HEW
to move in this area to provide the kinds
of information and training and encour
age the kind of research necessary so
that this very dread syndrome, which af
fects so many children and causes such
heartache to so many parents, can even
tually be eliminated.as a health scourge
in this country.

So I urge the adoption of the joint
resolution. I commend the Senator from
Minnesota for the leadership he has
provided and for making all of us on
the Health Subcommittee, and I think
all Senators, aware of the problem. I am
hopeful. that the joint resolution will
pass, and I compliment the Senator and
the ranking members of the committee,
inclUding the minority members, Sena
tors JAVITS and SCHWEIKER, for their in
terest and support in getting this meas
Ure to the floor and their help in formu
lating the program.

Mr. MONDALE. I thank the Senator
from Massachusetts for his wholehearted
support of the measure and for his lead
ership in bringing it swiftly before the
Senate for consideration.

We have found on several occasions in
the Health Subcommittee, on which I am
priVileged to serve, that there are com
pelling health problems' in this country
which, for some unexplainable reason,
are not receiving the kind of attention,
either in research or treatment, that is
needed. We have seen this earlier in con
nection with alcoholism and drug abuse,
and later with sickle· cell anemia, all

major health problems in this country on
which nothing was being done. Now an
other classic example of the problem is
this sudden infant death syndrome,
which causes over 10,000 deaths a year
and yet nothing is being done about it. I
believe that with this joint resolution,
at long last, something will be done to
deal with this frightful problem. I thank
the Senator from Massachusetts again,
and I am hopefUl that the joint resolu
tion will be adopted.

Mr. ROBERT C. BYRD. Mr. President,
will the Senator yield?

Mr. MONDALE. I yield to the Senator
from West Virginia.

Mr. ROBERT C. BYRD. Mr. President,
I wish to congratulate both the able sen
ior Senator from Masachusetts and the
able junior Senator from Minnesota for
their efforts and the splendid work they
have done in bringing this resolution to
the floor, and I share with them the feel
ing and the hope that the Senate will
adopt the joint resolution unanimously.

Mr. MONDALE. I thank the Senator.
Mr. ROBERT C. BYRD. May I inquire

of the Senator, are cosponsors being ac
cepted at this time?

Mr. MONDALE. We would be delighted
to have the Senator from West Virginia
as a cosponsor.

Mr. ROBERT C. BYRD. I thank the
Senator. Will he request that my name
be added?

Mr. MONDALE. Mr. President, I ask
unanimous consent that the name of the
Senator from West Virginia be added as
a cosponsor of this measure.

The ACTING PRESIDENT pro tem
pore. Without objection, it is so ordered.

Mr. ROBERT C. BYRD. I thank the
Senator.

Mr. MONDALE. Mr. President, I thank
the Senator from West Virginia for his
most gracious cosponsorship.

Mr. JAVITS. Mr. President, I ask
unanimous consent that the time on the
other side, which has been assigned to
me, may be handled by the Senator from
Pennsylvania (Mr. SCHWEIKER).

The ACTING PRESIDENT pro tem
pore. Without objection, it is so ordered.

Mr. SCHWEIKER. Mr. President, I
yield myself 3 minutes.

I should like to begin by commending
the Senator from Minnesota (Mr. MON
DALE), who has done so much to take
the leadership in this field and whose
imprint is borne by the measure we now
have before us. His work has been out...
standing, and without it I am sure the
joint resolution would not be in the form
that it is today here on the Senate floor.

Second, Mr. President, I would like to
say that the joint resolution does a few
simple things that need to be done \\ith
reference to a disease about which vir
tually nothing is known as to its cure, its
symptoms, or its general medical pat
terns. The measure, of course, focuses
much attention on the research that has
to be done on this mystery killer of in
fants, the largest killer of children under
1 year of age. It is rather ironic that we
do not even know what it is. When we
call it a mystery disease, crib death, or
sudden infant death syndrome, it lnd1:'
cates that we do notlmow. It is all the
more tragic when we consider the heart-
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ache it causes. There is ample reason for
giving high priority to research on this
major killer of ~nfants.

The problem is complicated by the
fact that we do not even call it a disease.
Unless it is classified and internationally
recognized as a disease, it is virtually
impossible to obtain statistics and to co
ordinate the necessary research and
treatment. On~ important feature of the
measure is that it moves to make the
sudden infant death syndrome, or SIDS,
as we call it, a recognized, classified dis
ease. It is hard to define it as a disease
when we are not even accounting for it
statistically.

Third we have the problem of parental
guilt. There is still much parental guilt
in connection with this kind of death.
The mother feels, though it is completely
unwarranted, that perhaps the child
died in the crib because she failed to
cover the child, or put too many covers on
it, or because she was out of the room
and did not heal' it cry out. She is
haunted by the specter in her mind that
she somehow helped cause the death
when nothing could be further from the
truth.

This problem has nothing to do with
parental neglect in any way. Never
theless, the mother who goes through
this rather hard experience needs to
cleanse her mind of that self-accusation.
That is what this bill is about, to help to
educate people as well as to help find the
cause of "crib deaths."

I strongly urge the Senate to vote for
the joint resolution. I believe it deserves
unanlmous support, and I once again
commend the Senator from Minnesota.

Mr. DOMINICK. Mr. President, will
the Senator from Pennsylvania yield?

Mr. SCHWEIKER. I yield 2 minutes to
the Senator from Colorado.

Mr. DOMINICK. Mr. President, I con
gratulate the Senator from Pennsyl
vania, .the ranklng minority member of
the subcommittee. The members of the
Health Subcommittee, on this measure
and many others, have been working
very well together, trying to find some
method by which all of us can participate
in improving the speed of technological
change in medical research and medical
procedures. I believe that the Senator
from Pennsylvania has been outstandipg
in this matter, and I think his leader
ship in the minority position, as head of
the minority group on the Health Sub
committee, has been very helpful in get
ting this measure rapidly to the floor. I
congratulate him.

Mr. SCHWEIKER. I thank the Sena
tor.

Mr. MONDALE. I yield 1 minute to the
Senator from New York.

Mr. JAVITS. Mr. President, the Sena
tor from Minnesota has properly taken
the wonderful lead in this joint· resolu
tion. I am a cosponsor of it. I strongly
urge its passage. I think it is one of the
finest measures we have reported out of
the Labor and Public Welfare Commit
tee....

Mr. President, I am a cosponsor of
Senate Joint Resolution 206. a. resolution
relating to sudden infant death syn
drome, and urge its passage. SIDS takes
the life of over 10,000 children each year;

it is the leading cause of death of infants
between 1 month and 1 year old-strik
ing 3 out of every 1,000 children born in
this country-yet nothing is known about
its causes. The parents of infants who die
from SIDS are, unfortunately, many
times harassed by legal authorities, as
well as family and neighbors, because the
available educational material in this
area is so limited that no one unaware of
this disease can believe that such a sud
den death can result from anything short
of mistreatment of the infant. Due to the
lack of information, the parents them
selves are plagued with doubt and anx
iety, thinking that the infant's death was
their faUlt, as they can see no other
explanation.

Unfortunately, Mr. President, prog
ress in this area has been slowed by the
paucity of researchers interested in the
sudden infant death syndrome, the ab
sence of the sudden infant death syn
drome from the International Classifica
tion of Diseases, and the very nature of
the syndrome itself, in which death oc
curs SUddenly and without warning.

Recognizing the inherent difficulties
of this research area, HEW plans to di
rect research efforts toward identifying
factors which predispose infants to the
sudden infant death syndrome and em
phasis will be placed upon the study of
developmental physiologic phenomena
on a longitudinal basis during the first
9 months of life. With this approach, it
should be possible to identify interrela
tionships between physiologic events in
the growing infant, his environment, and
the occurrence of the syndrome, and sub
sequently to develop approaches to inter
vention and prevention.

In addition, HEW has encouraged the
inclusion of the sudden infant death syn
drome in the ninth edition of the Inter
national Classification of Diseases, which
will make possible a reliable index of the
incidence and distribution of sudden in
fant death cases throughout the Na
tion. In addition, States and localities
will be encouraged through HEW educa
tional and informational activities to
make autopsies available for the victims
of the sudden infant death syndrome,
with prompt dissemination of findingS to
the parents.

Although much needs to be done to
achieve the purpose of the resolution to
assure that maximum resources and ef
forts are concentrated on medical re
search into sudden infant death syn
drome and on the extension of services
to families who lose children to the dis
ease, I am pleased to note that HEW has
undertaken many important first steps.

Mr. KENNEDY. Mr. President, I am
delighted this mornlng to join with the
Senator from Minnesota (Mr. MONDALE)
in the general debate on this very im
portant resolution in respect to sudden
infant death syndrome. My distinguished
colleague (Mr. MONDALE) chaired the
hearings by the subcommittee of chi1
dren and youth, of which I am a mem
ber, last January which led to the intro
duction of this important resolution.
Since the joint introduction of that reso
lution into the House and the Senate,
the Senate Health Subcommittee has

considered it in executive session,and it
has now been brought to the full Senate
for debate.

Mr. President, Senator MONDALE has
great compassion for the children of this
Nation, and his legislative records since
coming to the Senate is replete with ef
forts intended to create the conditions
for a better, more fruitful life for Amer
ican children.

This resolution is another solid ac
complishment in that effort of his, and
I commend him for it.

There is no doubt that Congress is
eager to move to eradicate this mysteri
ous and most heartbreaking childhood
disease. Three out of every 1,000 babies
born, or 10,000 infants born in this coun
try each year die from this elusive dis
ease before they reach their first
birthday. And yet, our scientists today
concede they know very little about this
tragic phenomenon which historians
tell us has been with us since Biblical
times. How ironic it is that although the
National Institute of Child Health and
Human Development of HEW calls it the
largest cause of deaths for infants from
1 to 12-months old, SIDS is not even
mentioned in Government statistics.

In Dr. Merlin K. Duval's testimony
before the Subcommittee on Children
and Youth, the Assistant Secretary for
Health and Scientific Affairs for HEW
stated that one of the reasons for the
slow progress in SIDS was the "paucity
of scientists interested in the phenome
non." One might then ask the question.
"why is there this paucity"?

When our Nation embarked on the
space age, we did not wring our hands
deploring the lack of space scientists. In
stead we took firm action to search the
scientific community for the best talent
possible. In less than a decade our Nation
was second to none in space research.
We can do no less for the children, and
indeed the families of the children who
may fall victim to sudden infant death.

Senate Joint Resolution 206 has sev
eral purposes. It assures appropriate re
search, inclUding research training, and
it also calls for an accelerated public
education program to·· extend public
knowledge.

The National Institute of Child Health
and Human Development is directed to-

Designate the search.for a cause and pre
vention of sudden infant death syndrome as
one of the highest priorities in intramural re
search efforts.

Thiswould include the awarding of re
search and research training grants and
fellowships and the encouraging of in
vestigative proposals for possible Federal
support.
. The Secretary of Health,.· Education,
and Welfare is also directed to develop,
publish, and distribute literature to. be
used for educational purposes.

Finally, the resolution provides for a
statistical reporting mechanism, inclUd
ing the addition of the SUdden· infant
death syndrome into themternational
classification of diseases.
.. What the resolution cannot speak ro
is the effect inaction will have on thou
sands of families across the face of this
country. As if the death of these infants.
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So the Joint resolution (S.J. Res. 206)
was passed.

The preamble was agreed to.
The Joint resolution, with its preamble,

reads as follows:
Whereas sudden Infant death syndrone

Pearson
Percy
Proxmire
Randolph
Ribicolf
Roth
Saxbe
Schweiker
Scott
Smith
Spong
Stalford
Stennis
Stevens
Stevenson
Symington
Taft
Talmadge
Thurmond
Tower
Tunney
Williams
Young

NAYS-O

NOT VOTING-28
Fulbright McGovern
Gambrell Montoya
Goldwater Mundt
Gravel Muskie
Harris Packwood
Hartke Pell
Hruska Sparkman
Humphrey Weicker
Inouye
McClellan

Baker
Beall
Brock
Brooke
Buckley
Cannon
Case
Cranston
Eastland
Fong

TOYA) , the Senator from Maine (Mr.
MUSKIE) , and the Senator from Alabama
(Mr. SPARKMAN), are necessarily absent.

I further announce that the Senator
from Rhode Island (Mr. PELL) , is absent
on official business.

I further announce that, if present and
voting, the Senator from Georgia (Mr.
GAMBRELL), the Senator from Minnesota
(Mr. HUMPHREY), the Senator from
South Dakota (Mr. MCGOVERN), and the
Senator from Rhode Island (Mr. FELL)
would each vote "yea."

Mr. GRIFFIN. I annOWlce that the
Senator from Tennessee (Mr. BAKER),
the Senator from Maryland (Mr. BEALL) ,
the Senator from Massachusetts (Mr.
BROOKE), the Senator from New York
(Mr. BUCKLEY), the Senator from New
Jersey (Mr. CASE), the Senator from Ore
gon (Mr. PACKWOOD), and the senator
from Connecticut (Mr. WEICKER) are ab
sent on official business.

The Senator from Hawaii (Mr. FONG)
is necessarily absent.

The Senator from Arizona (Mr. GOLD
WATER) and the Senator from South Da
kota (Mr. MUNDT) are absent because of
illness.

The Senator from Tennessee (Mr.
BROCK) and the Senator from Nebraska
(Mr. HRUSKA) are detained on official
business.

If present and voting, the Senator from
Massachusetts (Mr. BROOKE), the Sena
tor from Hawaii (Mr. FONG) , the Sena
tor from Nebraska (Mr. HRUSKA) , and the
senator from Oregon (Mr. PACKWOOD)
would each vote "yea."

The result was announced-yeas 72,
nays 0, as follows:

[No. 196 Leg.)

YEA8-72
Aiken Fl1llnin
Allen Grltlln
Allott Gurney
Anderson Hansen
Bayh Hart
Bellmon Hatfield
Bennett Holllngs
Bentsen Hughes
Bible Jackson
Boggs Javits
Burdick Jordan. N.C.
Byrd, Jordan. Idaho

Harry F., Jr. Kennedy
Byrd, Robert C. Long
Chiles Magnuson
Church Mansfield
Cook Mathias
Cooper McGee
Cotton McIntyre
Curtis Metcalf
Dole Miller
Dominick Mondale
Eagleton Moss
Ellender Nelson
Ervin Pastore

social and psychological impact on the
family who lose the child is often even
more tragic. Because so little is known
of the disease, parents often feel respOll
sible for the death, feeling that in some
way they could have prevented it. Fur
thermore, the parents must face the con
sequences of informing the authorities.
Because the child must generally be seen
by the coroner for investigation, crib
death is often handled as if it were a
criminal case. Hence, the parents are
often investigated as if they were poten
tial criminals, either directly or negli
gently having caused their infant's
death. This situation is deplorable-and
exists solely because of the general ig
norance of law enforcement officials,
coroners, and medical professionals as
to the existence and the nature of the
phenomena. Therefore, in order to cor
rect this situation, the resolution di
rects the Department of Health, Educa
tion, and Welfare to carry out the fol
lowing activities: First, development,
pUblication, and distribution of litera
ture to be used to inform the public and
educate professionals who come in con
tact with crib death, about the disease;
Second, work toward the establishment
of reliable statistical reporting proce
dures for crib death, and third, work
toward the availability of autopsies of
children who die of crib death and the
release of the autopsy results to the
parents.

Hopefully, with these directives, the
Department of Health, Education, and
Welfare will be able to alleviate some of
the social consequences of crib death and
to answer some of the many questions
which the disease raises.

Mr. MONDALE. Mr. President, I yield
back the remainder of my time.

Mr. SCHWEIKER. I Yield back the re
mainder of my time.

The ACTING PRESIDENT pro tem
pore. The question is on agreeing to the
committee amendment.

The amendment was agreed to.
The joint resolution was ordered to be

engrossed for a third reading and to be
read the third time.

The joint resolution was read a third
time.

The ACTING' PRESIDENT pro tem
pore. All time has been yielded back. The
joint resolution having been read a third
time, the question is, Shall it pass?

On this question the yeas and nays
have been ordered, and the clerk will call
the roll.

The second assistant legislative clerk
called the roll.

Mr. ROBERT C. BYRD. I announce
that the Senator from Nevada (Mr. CAN
NON), the Senator from California (Mr.
CRANSTON), the Senator from Mississippi
(Mr. EAsTLAND), the Senator from
Georgia (Mr. GAMBRELL), the Senator
from Alaska (Mr. GRAVEL), the Senator
from Oklahoma (Mr. HARRIS), the Sena
tor from Arkansas (Mr. FuLBRIGHT), the
Senator from Indiana (Mr. HARTKE), the
Senator from Minnesota (Mr. HUM
PHREY), the Senator from Hawaii (Mr.
INOUYE) ,. the Senator from Arkansas
(Mr. MCCLELLAN), the senator from
South Dakota. (Mr. McGoVEllN), the
Senator from New Mexico (Mr. MON-

were not tragic enough, the guilts shared
by parents remain far afterward.

Sudden infant death outranks deaths
from all other types of infant deaths, in
cluding heart disease. And over twice as
many babies die from SIDS as die from
cancer.

However, despite this irrefutable series
of facts, in 1971 the Department of
Health, Education, and Welfare awarded
only a ~altry $1.8 million in research
grants for SIDS.

On May 23, I appeared as chairman of
the Subcommittee on Health before Sen
ator WARREN G. MAGNUSON'S Subcommit
tee on HEW Appropriations. At that time
I testified that of the $127,244,000 budg
eted to the National Institute of Child
Health and Human Development, $10
million should be earmarked for the sud
den infant death syndrome. This seemed
to be an appropriate indication of con
gressional intention to move quickly on
SIDS. This should provide the stimulus
to mobilize the research community to
assist us in this effort.

Mr. President, I wish to thank you
for this opportunity to speak in behalf
of Senate Joint Resolution 206. Certainly
it is our children who are still our Na
tion's greatest resource. We can do no
less than assure each child the greatest
possibility and potential for life.

Mr. President, I urge my colleagues
to support this resolution.

Mr. TOWER. Mr. President, today, we
are considering Senate Joint Resolution
206, of which I am a cosponsor. This
resolution addresses the problem of the
sUdden infant death syndrome, or as it
is more commonly called, "crib death."

Each year, at least 10,000 babies
die of crib death. It is the largest killer
of infants between the age of 1 month
and 1 year. Yet, we do not know what
causes crib death-nor do we know how
to prevent it. It was only recently that
we developed a recurring set of symptoms
which has enabled us to define the
boundaries of the disease. This lack of
recognition has seriously impeded our
efforts to effectively control the disease
itself and its social consequences.

The first demonstrated need is for
basic research. A typical case of crib
death illustrates quite graphically our
ignorance of the disease. An apparently
healthy infant, usually between the ages
of 3 weeks and 6 months, is put to bed.
He shows no indication that something
might be wrong. He might have the
symptoms of a slight cold. Later, while
asleep, without a single cry or whimper
of warning, the child dies. An autopsy
discloses no definite cause of death. This
phenomena, which repeats itself thou
sands of times each year, is basically the
essence of our knowledge to date. We
merely know that crib death exists.
Therefore, the first purpose of this res
olution is to designate the search for a
cause and cure of sudden infant death
is one of the highest priorities of re
search activities in the National Insti
tute of Child Health and Human Devel
opment.

The second demonstrated need is for
the development of a range of programs
to educate the public. The death of the
child, by itself, is a tragic event. The
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kilIs more infants between the age of one
month and one year than any other dIsease;
and

Whereas the cause and prevention of sud
den infant death syndrome are unknown;
and

Whereas there is a lac~ of adequate knowl
edge about the disease and its effects among
the public and professionals who come into
contact with it: Therefore be it

Resolved by the Senate and House of Rep
resentatives of the United States of America
in Congress assembled, That it is the purpose
of this joint resolution to assure that the
maximum resources and effort be concen
trated on medical research into sudden in
fant death syndrome and on the extension
of services to fam1lles who lose children to
the disease.

SEC. 2. The National Institute of Child
Health and Human Development, of the De
partment of Health, Education, and Welfare,
is hereby directed to de31gnate the search for
a cause and prevention of sudden infant
death syndrome as one of the highest
priorities in Intramural research efforts and
In the awarding of ,'esearch and research
training gants and fellowships: and to en
courage researchers to submit proposals for
investigations of sudden infant death syn
drome.

SEC. 3. The Secretary of Health, Education,
and Welfare Is directed to develop, publish,
and distribute literature to be used in edu
cating and counseling coroners, medical ex
aminers, nurses, social workers, and similar
personnel and parents, future parents, and
famllles whose children die, to the nature of
sudden infant death syndrome and to the
needs of famllles affected by it.

SEC. 4. The Secretary of Health, Education,
and Welfare is further directed to work to
ward the institution of statistical reporting
procedures that wlll provide a reliable index
to the incidence and distrlbutl.:m of sudden
infant death syndrome cases throughout the
Nation; to work toward the availab11lty of
autopsies of children who apparently die of
sudden infant <;leath syndrome and for
prompt release of the results to their par
ents; and to add sudden infant death syn
drome to the International Classification of
Dls€>ase.

H.R. 2-0RDER OF BUSINESS
Mr. ROBERT C. BYRD. Mr. President,

I ask unanimous consent that the Secre
tary of the Senate be authorized to make
clerical and technical corrections in the
Senate amendment toH.R. 2, passed
yesterday.

The ACTING PRESIDENT pro tem
pore. Without objection, it is so ordered.

SUBSTITUTION OF CONFEREE ON
S. 2770

Mr. ROBERT C. BYRD. Mr. President,
I ask unanimous consent that the Sen
-ator from Indiana (Mr. BAYH) be sub
stituted as a Senate conferee on S. 2770,
to amend the Federal Water Pollution
Control Act, for the Senator from Cali
fornia (Mr. TuNNEY).

The ACTING PRESIDENT pro tem
pore. Without objection, it is so ordered.

ROUTINE MORNING BUSINESS
Mr. MANSFIELD. Mr. President, what

is the pending business? .
The PRESIDING OFFICER (Mr. WIL

LlAMS). Under the previow order, there
~l now b.e aperiopJor the transaction

of routine morning business, as in legis
lative session, for not to exceed 30 min
utes, with statements therein limited to
3 minutes.

Is there any morning business?

QUORUM CALL
Mr. MANSFIELD. Mr. President, I sug

gest the absence of a quorum.
The PRESIDING OFFICER (Mr. WIL

LIAMS). The clerk will call the roll.
The legislative clerk proceeded to call

the roll.
Mr. ROBERT C. BYRD. Mr. President,

I ask unanimous consent that the order
for the quorum call be rescinded.

The PRESIDING OFFICER. Without
objection, it is so ordered.

THE WORLD'S FIRST ENVIRONMEN
TAL CONFERENCE

Mr. MAGNUSON. Mr. President, for
some time the U.S. Senate has been deep
ly interested in world environmental
problems. The Senate passed a resolu
tion late last fall in which it unanimously
approved of the establishment of a
World Environmental Institute. As a re
sult, the State Department, the United
Nations, and other nations of the world
thought they should have what Would
be the first environmental conference in
the world. That conference is nQwbeing
held in Stockholm, Sweden.

The Senate designated me and the dis
tinguished Senator from New.JerseY
(Mr. CASE) to represent the Senate at
that meeting, at which we will present a
resolution based upon the measure .the
Senate passed last fall looking toward the
establishment of a world environmental
institute. I am to present the resolution
to that body, at which 110 nations will
pe represented.

Many facets of the environment prob
ably cannot be settled at the meeting,
but we can make some very, vital first
steps. Our proposal to the conference in
Stockholm will be for the establishment
of a data-gathering institute, probably
eventually leading to something like the
World International Health Organiza
tion, in which we would have a place for
all nations to'go to receive technical and
scientific advice on /:low to handle their
specific environmental problems.

There will .be ,many consultations in
Stockholm. As I said, many facets cannot
be resolved at the first session, but we
think we can take this first step. . '

LEAVE OF ABSENCE
':.. . .

Mr.' MAGNUSON; Mr. President, I
have been designated.:to present the
P1ea~;ure.to which I have referred to the
conference on 'Friday., morning. There...
fore, I must leave the .Senate late this
afternoon and proceed to Stockholm,: I
ask unanimous conSent that I may have
the indulgence of the Senate for~thenext
3 days, until the first part' ofctheweek,
and that Ibe excused for 'this verY'hri~
portant job on behalf of the 'Senate.

The PRESIDING OFFICER. Without
objectio~,ins soordeted. ' ,. .

ANNOUNCEMENI' '. OF, 'POSITION ON
VOTE ON KLEINDIENST NOMINA
TION
Mr: MAGNUSON. Mr. President,when

the vote occur tomorrow on the nomina
tion of Richard G. Kleindienst to be At
torney General, on the vote to refer to
the Committee on the JUdiciary I would
vote "aye" and on the vote on the nomi
nation I would vote "nay." The Senator
from Tennessee (Mr. BAKER), who rep
resents the State Department and the
very fine advisory committee that will be
in Stockholm will also be in Stockholm,
and we will pair on this vote. But I want
the RECORD to show that my vote would
be as I have stated. It will be a back-to
back vote tomorrow, and my vote on the
two rollcalls will be as I have stated.

COMMUNICATIONS ·FROM EXECU
TIVE DEPARTMENTS, ETC.

The ACTING PRESIDENT pro tem
pore (Mr. METCALF) laid before the Sen
ate the following ,letters, .'. which were
referred as indicated;

REPORT ON OVEROBLIGATIONS OF CERTAIN
ApPROPRIATIONS

A letter from the Secretary of Defense,
reporting, pursuant to law on authorized
deficiencies to be •Incurred for the: neces
sities pf the clirrent year in certain appro
priations; to the Committee on Appro
priations.
REPORT ON ApPROVAL OF LOANS RELATING TO

EAST KENTUCKY RURAL ELECTRIC COOPERA
TIVE CORP.• WINCHESTER, Ky.
A letter from the AdministratOr, Rural

Electrification Administration, .Department
of Agriculture,reporting, pursuant ,to law,
on the approval of loans made to certain
distribution systems for investment ,in· East
Kentucky RUral Electric;:C09perative Cor
poration, Winches~r,.Kentucky: '. to the
Committee on Appr0J'riationS. , .,'

~EPORT ONE~~ORT~ON.~O~,. "
A letter, from the. Secretary of COIpmerce,

transmitting,' pursuant' to iaw, a ,report on
Export Control, for the first quarter of 1972
(with an 'accompanying report); to ,the Com
mittee on Banklng"Housing and . Urban
Affairs.

F'LAMMABn.ITY STANDARD FOR MATI'RESSES

A letter from the Assistant Secretary Of
Commerce, .transmitting; for the lnf6rm.a;'
tlon of the Senate,' a .fiammabl1lty .standard
for ma.ttI'esses (with ac,c~lI~panylngpapers) :
~ theCommltt~:on COInmerce,
PRopqS,EDAME~DM~NTRr S~IPPIN.G ACT, 1916

A letter from the Chairman. Federal Mari~
tinJ.eCommlssion. tr!loPBmitting a.draft, of
proposed legislation j;oalIleIld,the>ShIPP!~
Act, 1916, to provl<:ie fgr,theestabllshm,ept
of single-factor rates. under a'through bill
of jiJ.dingfor thetransport~tionofproperpy
in ',the '. foreign and, dotneSt,1c offshore .coDi
merce of the United States", ana for other
PlU'PoSes (with accompanying papers); ,'to
~\l C<?J.IWlittee on Commerce.
1;Is'i: OF e :REPORTS OF GENERAL ACCOUNTING

. QFFICE

A letter. from the ComptrOller General·of
the, Uni~ ,states, ,transmitting, pursuant to
hiw, a, list. of reports made .by t~at o!JlC\l;
for ~he month of M4:r, 1972 (\Vl~han accom,
panying4oc\Ull:ent); ,1;Qthl'l C'o~mit~'ori
Government Operations." "'J;'J' ,
PROSPECTU'S:ESF?R. CClNllTRUCTION ,OFC~TAiN

, ,. . . FED~M,. BWLIlm:,a~: , ' . .:
'A letter from the" ActmgAdInJ!l~~r!Ltor.

Gen,er8.l Services' A~ministra.ti0!l;'j;rllI1:#Dit,


